
















Agenda Item 5

MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: September 4, 2012
M&C # 09-01-12

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: UPDATES ON THE PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGETS AS A
RESULT OF THE WORKSHOP HELD ON AUGUST 21, 2012

PURPOSE

A workshop was conducted on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2013 Budgets on August 21,
2012.  This is an Update as a result of that Workshop on the following Proposed Fiscal Year
2013 Budgets:

General Fund
Water and Sewer (Enterprise) Fund
Community Center Fund

S.E.E. IMPACT STATEMENT

Social Equity - The budget serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning and
control. It addresses the goals of the City, establishes priorities, determines the level of
funding commitment, and serves as a day-to-day operations guide. The City establishes a
budget for twelve separate funds.  Activities of the General Fund, Water and Sewer
(Enterprise) Fund, Debt Service Fund, Community Center Fund, Building Security Fund,
Child Safety Fund, Street Maintenance Tax Fund, Municipal Court Technology Fund, Police
Forfeiture Fund, Grant Fund, CIED Fund and Capital Project Fund are included in the
annual budget.

Economic Development - Utilizing taxpayer monies to maximize public safety, City
administration and City programs/services allows the City to actively pursue Economic
Development opportunities.

Environmental Stewardship - The City’s El Verde by 2020 initiative continues to be
supported through careful allocation of budgetary dollars that promotes sustainability.

APPROVED: _____________________ DISAPPROVED: ____________________

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:____________________________

_________________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

________________________
Janie Willman, City Secretary



1



PAdjusted health insurance to reflect savings
for all funds

PChanged COLA from a 1% to a 2% for all
funds

PAdded additional funds for Police and Fire
overtime
< $9,000 per department

P Increased boot allowance in Public Works
< $2,000

Recent Budgetary Changes

2



3

General Fund



Budget Summary

4



5



Budget Summary

6



7



Budget Summary

8



PSeptember 11, 2012
< 2nd Public Hearing on Proposed Tax Rate

PSeptember 18, 2012
< Public Hearing & Adoption of the Budget &

Formal Adoption of the Tax Rate

Next Steps

9



10

 City of Leon Valley
Budget Updates
Fiscal Year 2013

September 4, 2012



Agenda Item 6
MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: September 4, 2012
M&C # 09-02-12

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED 2012 TAX RATE OF
$.574282/$100 VALUATION, WHICH IS $.038772 HIGHER THAN LAST
YEAR’S TAX RATE OF $.535510.

PURPOSE

Last Year, the CITY OF LEON VALLEY property tax rate was $.535510.  This year, the CITY
OF LEON VALLEY is proposing a property tax rate of $.574282, which is $.038772 higher
than last year’s tax rate.

The Property Tax Code, Chapter 26 requires a governing body to conduct two public hearings
if the proposed tax rate exceeds the lower of the rollback tax rate or the effective tax rate,
whichever is lower. The 2012 proposed tax rate of $.574282 exceeds the effective tax rate of
$.537834 by 6.776812%.

This is the first public hearing to consider that increase.  The second public hearing
will be held on September 11, 2012 at Council Chambers, City Hall, 6400 El Verde
Road, Leon Valley, Texas.

The vote on the proposed tax rate will be on September 18, 2012, 7:00 p.m., at Council
Chambers, City Hall, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas.

FISCAL IMPACT

Funds to publish the Notice of Public Hearing are included in the City’s fiscal year 2012
budget.

S.E.E. IMPACT STATEMENT

Social Equity – A responsible municipal budget strives to allocate taxpayer dollars in an
efficient and effective manner that represents all citizens equally. Public Hearings ensure the
citizens of Leon Valley transparency in Government.

Economic Development – Utilizing taxpayer monies to maximize public safety, city
administration and city programs/services allows the City to actively pursue Economic
Development opportunities.

Environmental Stewardship – The City’s El Verde by 2020 initiative continues to be supported
through careful allocation of budgetary dollars that promotes sustainability.  Ad Valorem
Taxes are the most stable source of revenue for the General Fund.

APPROVE: DISAPPROVE:
APPROVE WITH THE FOLLOWING COMMENTS:

ATTEST:

Janie Willman, City Secretary



1

City of Leon Valley
2012 Tax Rate

First Public Hearing
September 4, 2012



2

Background

• Last Year, the CITY OF LEON VALLEY property
tax rate was
• $.535510

• This year, the CITY OF LEON VALLEY is
proposing a property tax rate of
• $.574282, which is $.038772 higher than last year’s

tax rate



3

Background
Continued

• The Property Tax Code, Chapter 26 requires a
governing body to conduct two public hearings if
the proposed tax rate exceeds the lower of the
rollback tax rate or the effective tax rate,
whichever is lower

• The 2012 proposed tax rate of $.574282
exceeds the effective tax rate of $.537834 by
6.776812%
• Exceeds the adopted 2011 tax rate of $.535510 by

$.038772



4

Impact to Residents

• Average residential increase
• Dollar increase

• $45.92 annual
• $ 3.83 monthly

• Tax Rate increase
• $.038772



5

• This is the first public hearing to consider that
increase

• The second public hearing will be held on
September 11, 2012 at Council Chambers, City
Hall, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas

• The vote on the proposed tax rate will be on
September 18, 2012, 7:00 p.m., at Council
Chambers, City Hall, 6400 El Verde Road,  Leon
Valley, Texas



6

City of Leon Valley
September 4, 2012



Agenda Item 7
CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS

AUGUST 21, 2012

Page 1 of 8

The City Council of the City of Leon Valley, Texas, met on the 21st of August, 2012 at 5:30 p.m.
at the Leon Valley City Council Chambers, at 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas, for the
purpose of the following business, to-wit:

BUDGET WORKSHOP MEETING OF THE
CITY OF LEON VALLEY CITY COUNCIL, 5:30 P.M.

1. Call the City of Leon Valley Special City Council Meeting to Order, and Determine
a Quorum is Present. Mayor Riley called the Special City Council Meeting to order at
5:35 p.m. with all members of the City Council present:  Hill, Reyna, Baldridge, Dean,
and Biever.

The following staff members were in attendance:  City Manager Longoria, City Secretary
Willman, Community Development Director Flores, Economic Development Director
Mora, Finance Director Wallace, Fire Chief Lee, Human Resources Director Caldera,
Library Director Trent, Police Chief Wallace, and Public Works Director Vick.

2. Workshop on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2013 Budgets, M&C # 08-10-12. The City
Council conducted the first workshop on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2013 Budgets,
consisting of discussing and determining matters pertinent to the Fiscal Year 2013
Budgets:   General Fund, Water and Sewer (Enterprise) Fund, Community Center Fund,
Street Maintenance Tax Fund, Grant Fund, CIED Fund, Building Security Fund, Child
Safety Fund, Municipal Court Technology Fund, Debt Service Fund, Capital Project
Fund, and the Police Forfeiture Fund.

City Manager Longoria briefed the City Council on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2013
Budgets.  He updated the City Council on changes to the Proposed Fiscal Year 2013
Budget since it was formally presented on August 7, 2012. Significant changes noted:
health insurance coverage for the City’s employees at 10 percent increase resulting in
$63,528 in annual savings across all funds which would allow for a 2 percent cost of
living adjustment, should the City Council so designate. The City Manager noted that the
savings on the health insurance could be left unappropriated and rolled into the fund
balance.  The Proposed Fiscal Year 2013 Budget features an ad valorem taxable value
of $.574282 which is $0.038772 more than the adopted Fiscal Year 2012 rate of
$.535510, which will fund the new debt issue authorized by the City’s voters in the May
2012 referendum for the new municipal facility.

Councilman Biever asked about a possibility of a hybrid of compensatory and overtime
for the Fire Department.  He noted that with the reduction of 1 position, compensatory
time would seem to increase. He asked if the City Manager had considered making
that change or would consider paying 1 ½ time or double time for working on certain
holidays; a process to be determined by the City Manager. City Manager Longoria
informed the City Council that the reduction in staffing was recommended by Fire Chief
Irwin.  He noted that during the year he has been city manager that the Fire Department
has been carrying between two and three vacancies and continued the same service
load.  Staff will be working with the Fire Department to ensure that compensatory time
and overtime are being managed as effectively as possible. A question was raised
regarding if there is a cap on the amount of compensatory time that can be earned.



Agenda Item 7
CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS

AUGUST 21, 2012

Page 2 of 8

Staff answered 480 hours. A question was raised about the need for having two ladder
trucks. Fire Chief Lee replied that having two ladder trucks allows for continuity of full
services without disruption due to at times extended maintenance down time.  He
reported that the two ladder trucks have pumpers on them as well as providing aerial
support.

Mr. Longoria continued detailing the Proposed Budget highlights.  The City Manager
pointed out that savings demonstrated through the various departments are due to
retirement of employees at the higher salaries based on longevity in positions reflecting
new hires coming in at lower salaries. Mr. Longoria reported the Proposed Budget
includes sales tax conservatively budgeted.  Revenues reflect a decrease which is due
to a reduction in building permits.  Decreased fines and fees are attributed to community
oriented policing.  New contractor registration and modest towing contract fees are
factored into the Proposed Budget. Expenditures include reallocation of salaries to the
Water and Sewer Fund to more accurately reflect personnel costs.  Funding is budgeted
to cover the City’s portion o f the Bandera Road Traffic Light Signalization Project.  The
Cost of Living increase is effective with the first pay period in October.  The Proposed
Budget recommends continuing merit pay and longevity pay. Briefly discussed is step
up pay, required by the Local Government Code, Chapter 141.033, for cities with
populations over 10,000 persons.  Funding is provided for the Texas Municipal
Retirement System (TMRS) reflecting a .40% increase.  The staff explained that Texas
cities and the TMRS factor and pay for retirement reflecting mutual contributions versus
the system now formerly used by some California cities in the recent news based on
bankruptcy.  It was noted that the Budget Summary features a very healthy $1.8 million
not including the committed reserve fund of $800,000 plus. The Water and Sewer Funds
reflect increases attributed to mandated increases by the Edwards Aquifer Authority.  A
3 percent increase in the Water and Sewer rates will be the monthly increase for the
average residential customer by $1.48.  The Proposed Budget is balanced and includes
$1.5 million in CIED Program Proceeds and the $7 million in Bonds as authorized in the
May 2012 Bond Election.  The City Manager concluded with the dates of the two
required public hearings and the date of the public hearing and adoption of the Budget
and formal adoption of the tax rate.

3. Consider Vote for the Placement of a Proposal to Adopt the City’s 2012 Tax Rate
on the Agenda of September 18, 2012, Council Meeting at a Rate of $.574282/$100
Valuation, Which is $.038772 Higher Than Last Year’s Tax Rate of $.535510 and
6.776812% Higher Than the Effective Tax Rate of $.537834, M&C # 08-11-12. The
City is proposing to adopt a tax rate of $.574282 per $100 of property valuation for tax
year 2012, which is $.038772 higher than last year’s tax rate of $.535510.  When a
proposed tax rate exceeds the rollback rate or the effective rate, whichever is lower,
Chapter 26 of the Texas Property Tax Code requires the City to vote to place a proposal
to adopt the rate on the agenda of a future meeting as an action item.  For the 2012 tax
year, the proposed tax rate of $.574282 exceeds the effective tax rate of $.537834 by
6.776812%.

The City Council took action by a record vote as follows. Motion by Councilman Reyna and
second by Councilwoman Hill to place the proposal to adopt the City’s 2012 Tax Rate on the
agenda of September 18, 2012.  Voting Aye:  Councilwoman Hill, Councilman Reyna,



Agenda Item 7
CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS

AUGUST 21, 2012

Page 3 of 8

Councilwoman Baldridge, Councilman Dean, and Councilman Biever. Mayor Riley announced
the motion carried on unanimous vote of the City Council.

4. Consider Action on a Call for Two Public Hearings on the Proposed 2012 Tax Rate
of $.574282 per $100 Valuation, which is $.038772 Higher Than Last Year’s Tax
Rate of $.535510 and 6.776812% Higher Than the Effective Tax Rate of $.537834.
The First Public Hearing will be on September 4, 2012 and the Second Public
Hearing Will be on September 11, 2012, at 7:00 P.M. in the City Council Chambers,
M&C # 08-12-12. The City Council placed a proposal on the September 18, 2012 City
Council Agenda as an action item in keeping with Chapter 26 of the Texas Tax Code
which requires such an action based the tax rate being higher than the effective rate or
the rollback rate; two public hearings are required.

Motion by Councilman Reyna and second by Councilwoman Hill calling two public hearings on
the proposed 2012 tax rate  of $.574282 per $100 valuation, which is $.038772 higher than last
year’s tax rate of $.535510 and 6.776812% higher than the effective tax rate of $.537834 on
September 4 and September 11.  Voting Aye:  Hill, Reyna, Baldridge, Dean, and Biever.  Mayor
Riley announced the motion carried on the unanimous vote of the City Council.

5. Future Agenda Items Related to the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget Process
Fiscal Year 2013 Budget Workshops in September, 2012:
First Public Hearing, September 4th

Second Public Hearing, September 11th

Meeting to Vote on Proposed Tax Rate, September 18th - Fiscal Year 2013 Budget
Public Hearing, Adoption, and FY2013 Tax Rate set on September 18, 2012.

6. Adjourn. Motion to adjourn by Councilman Reyna and second by Councilwoman
Baldridge at 7:20 p.m.  Voting Aye:  Hill, Reyna, Baldridge, Dean, and Biever.  Mayor
Riley announced the motion carried on the unanimous vote of the City Council.

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY CITY COUNCIL, 7:00 P.M.

1. Call the City of Leon Valley Regular City Council Meeting to Order, Determine a
Quorum is Present, and Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Riley called the Special City Council Meeting to order at 7:20 p.m. with all
members of the City Council present:  Hill, Reyna, Baldridge, Dean, and Biever.

The following staff members were in attendance:  City Manager Longoria, City Secretary
Willman, City Attorney McKamie, Community Development Director Flores, Economic
Development Director Mora, Finance Director Wallace, Fire Chief Lee, Human
Resources Director Caldera, Library Director Trent, Police Chief Wallace, and Public
Works Director Vick.

City Councilman Biever led the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.



Agenda Item 7
CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS

AUGUST 21, 2012

Page 4 of 8

2. Citizens to be Heard and Time for Objections to the Consent Agenda. There were
no citizens to address the City Council.  No items were removed for separate
consideration on the Consent Agenda.

Consent Agenda

Motion by Councilman Dean and second by Councilman Reyna to approve Consent Agenda
Items 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7, as presented.  Voting Aye:  Hill, Reyna, Baldridge, Dean, and Biever.
Mayor Riley announced the motion carried on the unanimous vote of the City Council.

3. Consider Approval of the Meeting Minutes of the July 17, 2012 Leon Valley Special
and Regular City Council Meetings. This agenda item allowed the City Council to
ratify its action of August 7, 2012 approving the July 17, 2012 Meeting Minutes which
were erroneously listed on the August 7 agenda as July 7, 2012.

4. Consider Approval of the Meeting Minutes of the August 7, 2012 Leon Valley
Special and Regular City Council Meetings. This agenda item allowed the City
Council to approve the minutes of the Leon Valley Special and Regular City Council
Meetings of August 7, 2012.

5. Consider Action on an Ordinance Appointing a Member to the Leon Valley Zoning
Commission, M&C # 08-13-12. This agenda item allowed the City Council to adopt an
Ordinance appointing a Member to the Leon Valley Zoning Commission; Carlos D.
Fernandez.

Adopted Ordinance No. 12-020 - Appointing a Member to the Leon Valley Zoning
Commission – Carlos D. Fernandez.

6. Consider Action on M&C # 08-14-12, Authorizing Continuation of Agreement with
the United States Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration. This
agenda item allowed the City Council to authorize the continuation of an agreement with
the United States Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA).  This
cooperative agreement with the San Antonio District Office of the DEA places a Leon
Valley police officer in the State and Local Task Force of the DEA, which is involved in
the investigation of national and international illegal narcotics distribution organizations.

7. Consider Approval of Budget Adjustments and Related Ordinance for the Capital
Project Fund to Accurately Record the Issuance Cost and Proceeds for the
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012, M&C # 08-15-12. This agenda item allowed
the City Council to approve an Ordinance recording the bond issuance cost and
proceeds following budget adjustments needed for the Capital Project Fund from the
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012.

Adopted Ordinance No. 12-021 - Approving Amendments to the Original Budget of the
City of Leon Valley, Texas, for the Fiscal Year of 2012.

Public Hearing and Sign Variance Case Agenda

8. Conduct Public Hearing to Consider Replat Case # 2012-122, with Attached
Ordinance, a Request by Sinclair Land Surveying, Inc., Agent for the Elisabeth
Calderon-Urdiales, Applicant and Property Owner, to Replat Approximately 1.208



Agenda Item 7
CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS

AUGUST 21, 2012

Page 5 of 8

Acres of Land, Being Lots 6 and 7, Block 4, to New Lot 27, Block 4, CB 4429,
Rollingwood Estates Subdivision Unit #1, at 5320 Blackberry Drive, for
Construction of a Single-Family Dwelling, M&C # 08-16-12. This agenda item
allowed the City Council to replat two lots, by ordinance, to allow the applicant and
property owner to build a home on a location which would otherwise include building on
a property line.

Community Development Director Flores briefed the City Council on this agenda item.

Mayor Riley opened the Public Hearing at 7:25 p.m.  There being no speakers to come
forward to address the City Council during the Public Hearing, Mayor Riley closed the
Public Hearing at 7:25 p.m. and one-half second.

Motion by Councilman Reyna and second by Councilwoman Hill to adopt the Ordinance to
replat approximately 1.208 acres of land, being Lots 6 and 7, Block 4, to New Lot 27, Block 4,
CB 4429, Rollingwood Estates Subdivision Unit #1, at 5320 Blackberry Drive, for construction of
a single-family dwelling.  Voting Aye:  Hill, Reyna, Baldridge, Dean, and Biever.  Mayor Riley
announced the motion carried on unanimous vote of the City Council.

Adopted Ordinance No. 12-022 – Approving a Subdivision Replat Being Approximately
1.208 Acres of Land, Being Lots 6 and 7, Block 4, to Lot 27, Block 4, CB 4429,
Rollingwood Estates Unit #1 in the City of Leon Valley.

9. Consider a Request by Herman Murray, General Manager of Ancira Winton-
Chevrolet, for a Variance to Chapter 14, “Zoning,” Section 14.02.305, Regulations
for All Districts” Subsection (m), “Overlay Districts,” Appendix C, Section G.2(j.),
“Prohibited Signs, to Allow for a Light Emitting Diode (LED) Sign, Measuring 149-
Square Feet at 6111 Bandera Road, M&C # 08-17-12. This agenda item allowed the
City Council to grant a variance to the Sign standards as prescribed in the Sustainability
Overlay District.

Community Development Director Flores briefed the City Council on this agenda item.
Following the staff briefing, Mr. Herman Murray addressed the City Council.  He
indicated that if the request is approved, Ancira Winton-Chevrolet would like to offer the
City the use of the sign for City-related events. Questions were raised regarding if the
sign [face] would be two-sided, about the ability to change colors for different kinds of
messages, and if the sign would be visible from the flyover. Staff responded that the
answer to all of the questions raised was “yes.”

Motion by Councilman Dean and second by Councilman Reyna to grant the variance to allow
for a light emitting diode (LED) sign, measuring 149-square feet at 6111 Bandera Road.  Voting
Aye:  Reyna, Hill, Baldridge, Dean, and Biever. Mayor Riley announced the motion carried on
unanimous vote of the City Council.

Regular Agenda

10. Consider Action on M&C # 08-18-12, a Request to Award the Fiscal Year 2013
Group Health Insurance Bid for Employee Medical, Dental, and Life Insurances



Agenda Item 7
CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS

AUGUST 21, 2012

Page 6 of 8

and to Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Insurance Contract. This agenda
item allowed the City Council to award the 2013 Fiscal Year Group Health Insurances
Contract for Employee Medical, Dental, and Life Insurance and authorized the City
Manager to Execute the Insurance Contracts.

Following a briefing by staff and the City’s insurance broker, Matt Stedman of Gallagher Benefit
Services, the City Council took action.

Motion by Councilman Biever and second by Councilwoman Hill to award the Fiscal Year 2013
Group Health Insurances Bid for employee medical to Blue Cross, Blue Shield of Texas, to
Aetna for Dental, and to Met Life for life insurance coverage, as recommended by the staff and
the broker, Gallagher Benefit Services.  Voting Aye:  Hill, Baldridge, Dean, and Biever.
Abstaining:  Reyna.  Mayor Riley announced the motion carried by a vote of 4 in favor to 1
abstaining.

Discussion Agenda

11. City Manager’s Report.  (Longoria)
A. Informational updates, as may be required. Public Works Director Vick made a

presentation on the 2012 Critical Water Pumping Reductions and the need to
continue water conservation measures. The City Council received specifics on
the calculation process used to determine each stage, the number of days in
each stage, the maximum reduction of water use and the actual reduction of
water use.  It was reported that the likelihood of the City of Leon Valley
exceeding its reduced authorized pumping amount is very unlikely. September
15 was set as the date to reassess the need to move to Stage 3 Water
Conservation measures.

It was reported that the Edwards Aquifer Authority declared Stage 3 as of
August 15, 2012 while the San Antonio Water System (SAWS) remains in Stage
2.  The City of Leon Valley follows SAWS’ actions in terms of moving from one
stage to another and the City of Leon Valley remains in Stage 2.

B. Monthly Departmental Reports. There were no questions raised regarding the
Monthly Departmental Reports.

C. Financial Statement of City of Leon Valley for July 2012.  Finance Director
Wallace briefed the City Council on the Financial Statement for the period of July
2012.

D. Approved Minutes of City-Affiliated Boards, Committees, and
Commissions.
(1) June 18, 2012 Leon Valley Public Library Board of Trustees Meeting

Minutes
E. Future Agenda Items.

(1) Municipal Facility Design Services Contract.
(2) Texas Department of Transportation Presentation on Super Street

Model.
(3) City Council Awards City Attorney Contract.
(4) Next Quarterly Special Joint Meeting with the Leon Valley Economic

Development Corporation Board of Directors, September 18, 2012,
5:30 P.M.



Agenda Item 7
CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS

AUGUST 21, 2012

Page 7 of 8

(5) Appointment of Members in Places 2, 4, and 6, to the Board of
Directors to the Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation,
September 18, 2012, for Position Appointments Expiring September
30, 2012.

12. Citizens to be Heard. Olen Yarnell, 7230 Sulky Lane, addressed the City Council.  Mr.
Yarnell asked if there would be any effect to remaining in Stage 2 Water Restrictions as
a policy matter. Mr. Yarnell asked if there is any way to get a AA+ Bond Rating and if
there is any advantage to obtaining a AA+ Bond Rating. Staff responded that it is
preferable to follow the regional requirements for moving from one stage to another in
terms of water conservation.  It was also noted that bond ratings are assigned at the
time of a transaction and cost money for the process.

13. Announcements by the Mayor and Council Members.

Mayor Riley announced that City Councilman Biever had a birthday the day before and
that was the reason for the birthday cake sitting in front of him on the dais. Community
Development Director Flores led the assembly in the Birthday song.

Councilman Reyna indicated that he meets with the large group of the Legislative Policy
Committee on the upcoming Friday.  He informed the City Council that he sent forms
and documents to the City Manager for use in developing legislative recommendations
regarding the hotel occupancy tax exemption with sufficient time to be considered by the
Texas Municipal League Legislative Committee.

Mr. McKamie announced that five attorneys from the firm of McKamie-Krueger would be
participating as panelists at a Texas Municipal League Conference session on
retaliation. He invited the City Council to stop by the session.

Mayor Riley reported she, Councilwoman Hill, and Councilman Reyna met with San
Antonio City Councilman Cris Medina and City of San Antonio staff regarding a
Memorandum of Understanding for Crystal Hills Park. Indications are funding is
available for use in the City Manager’s budget in the City of San Antonio. She
announced that a letter is being prepared to gauge Raising Cane’s interest in
contributing to funding the dog park portion of Crystal Hills Park.

Mayor Riley invited the City Council to attend a CPS Energy Meeting set for September
11 at 3:30 p.m. on renewable energy.  Mayor Riley asked for updates on when the
Property Maintenance Code Ordinance would be returning for consideration by the City
Council. She reported that she has received a number of phone calls from citizens in
the community about homes that have several persons residing in them.  She asked if
the City Council thought anything needed to be done about those situations. City
Manager Longoria reported that Community Development continues doing research on
the property maintenance code and that an agenda item may be ready as soon as the
second City Council Meeting in September. Mayor Riley asked for an update on the
RFQ process for City Attorney Services.   The City Manager indicated that he still has to
get a list of the major elements from each City Council Member regarding their



Agenda Item 7
CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS

AUGUST 21, 2012

Page 8 of 8

preferences.  He indicated that staff hopes to report on the progress at the next City
Council meeting.

Regarding the budgeting process, Mayor Riley asked if it is possible to request funding
from the Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation (LVEDC) to offset part of the
new Public Works position dedicated to the Bandera Road Revitalization Project. She
cited the ballot language under which the 4b sales tax was authorized in Leon Valley.
The City Manager reported the LVEDC had considered it during two of their meetings.
LVEDC Board Members considered payment or contributions to payment for an
employee to be more of an operations and maintenance matter. The LVEDC Board of
Directors instead decided to contribute in the $30,000 range towards the City’s new
monument signage. The LVEDC Board thought the operations and management part of
funding was recurring, and was outside the ballot language meaning.   The City Manager
suggested the position and use can be reassessed after one calendar year during the
next budget cycle. Mr. Longoria pointed out that Universal City does it through its
Economic Development Corporation. It was suggested that this may be a topic for the
next quarterly joint meeting between the City Council and the LVEDC. Mayor Riley
announced that the LVEDC is accepting Board of Director Applications for positions 2, 4,
and 6.

The City Council consensus was another budget workshop was not needed.  The City
Manager will bring the changes reflected from tonight’s Budget Workshop to the next
City Council Meeting as an update item.

Executive Session

14. The City Council of the City of Leon Valley reserves the right to adjourn into Executive
Session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed
on the posted agenda, above, as authorized by the Texas Government Code Sections
551.071 (consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberations about real property),
551.073 (deliberations about gifts and donations, 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076
(deliberations about security devices), and 551.087 (economic development).

There was no Executive Session held under this agenda item.

15. Adjourn. Mayor Riley adjourned the meeting without objection at 8:20 p.m.

_______________________________
Mayor Chris Riley

ATTEST:

Janie Willman, City Secretary



Agenda Item 8
MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: September 4, 2012
M&C # 09-03-12

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A REVISED
INTERLOCAL COOPERATION CONTRACT WITH THE TEXAS
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY (TDPS) FOR THE FAILURE
TO APPEAR PROGRAM OFFERED BY THE DRIVER LICENSE
DIVISION UNDER THE TEXAS TRANSPORTATION CODE
CHAPTER 706 .

PURPOSE

The City currently has an Interlocal Cooperation Contract with TDPS to implement the
provisions of the Texas Transporation Code Chapter 706 (Failure to Appear Program)
which allows a local political subdivision to contract with the TDPS to provide them the
information necessary to deny the renewal of a driver license of a person who fails to
appear for a complaint or citation or fails to pay or satisfy a judgment ordering payment
of a fine and cost in the manner ordered by the court in a matter involving any offense
that a court has jurisdiction of under Chapter 4, Code of Criminal Procedure.

During the 82nd Legislative Session, Section 706.005 was amended to require courts to
immediately notify TDPS when no cause exists to continue to deny renewal of a person’s
driver license.  Under the existing contract, courts had 5 business days to report
compliance.  The City already immediately notifies TDPS, so the change will have no
impact on the court.

FISCAL IMPACT

None. Fees for the Failure to Appear Program are pass through fees.

RECOMMENDATION

Authorize the City Manager to execute the revised Interlocal Cooperation Contract with
TDPS.

Approved Disapproved

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:

ATTEST:

________________________________________
Janie Willman, City Secretary

















Agenda Item 9

MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: September 4, 2012
M&C:    # 09-04-12

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ACTION ON A RESOLUTION AND SUBMISSION OF
DOCUMENTATION TO THE TEXAS MUNICIPAL LEAGUE (TML) FOR
CONSIDERATION BY THE TML RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE FOR
CONSIDERATION AT THE 2012 ANNUAL TML CONFERENCE
REGARDING LEGISLATION TO REPEAL HOTEL-MOTEL
OCCUPANCY TAX EXEMPTION AS ALLOWED UNDER TEXAS TAX
CODE CHAPTER 156.101—PERMANENT RESIDENT

PURPOSE
This agenda item will allow the City Council to consider approving a resolution for
consideration by the Texas Municipal League (TML) at the 2012 TML Conference.
Under the TML Constitution, there are prescribed processes for legislative actions to be
considered by the TML Resolutions Committee. The proposed resolution contains
language which would repeal the Hotel-Motel Occupancy Tax Exemption as allowed
under Texas Tax Code Chapter 156.101—Permanent Resident.

Under the current legislation, persons occupying hotel rooms at the rate of $15 or more
each day, for at least 30 consecutive days, without interruption of payment for the
period, are exempted from paying hotel occupancy taxes after the initial 30 day period.
The repeal of the Tax Exemption would require the payment of hotel occupancy taxes
throughout the entire period of occupancy regardless of the length of the say in excess
of 30 days.

If passed by the Texas Legislature, persons who reside in hotel lodging on a permanent
basis would share in an equitable manner the payment and collection of taxation for the
full and continued occupancy in keeping with residence permanency and in equal
measure to holders of real property that are required to pay ad-valorem taxes.  The
repeal of the exemption would result in collection and payment of hotel occupancy taxes
in full to Texas municipalities.

FISCAL IMPACT
Not applicable

RECOMMENDATION
That the City Council adopt a Resolution repealing Section 156.101, Exception—
Permanent Resident as authorized under the Tax Code Chapter 156, Hotel Occupancy
Tax, Subchapter C. Exceptions to Tax.

S.E.E IMPACT STATEMENT
Social Equity – The City will encourage collaborative participation by all of its residents.
The City’s residents will fully participate in the payment of taxes imposed by the Tax
Code for the use of lodging.
Environmental Stewardship – Not applicable
Economic Development – Not applicable

APPROVED:___________________ DISAPPROVED:_______________



Agenda Item 9

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING COMMENTS:____________________________
______________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

______________________
Janie Willman, City Secretary



2012
TML RESOLUTION COVER SHEET

Sponsoring Entity:  City of Leon Valley

Brief Background:  The attached resolution will repeal Section 156.101, Exception—Permanent
Resident

What the Resolution is Intended to Accomplish:  The resolution calls for support regarding the
repeal of Section 156.101, Exception—Permanent Resident

How the Resolution is City-Related/How it Addresses a Municipal Issue: The legislative act and
subsequent amendments were intended to provide relief through exception of payment of the
hotel occupancy tax to persons occupying hotels at the rate of $15 or more each day, for at least
30 consecutive days, so long as there is no interruption of payment for the period.  The origins of
the Act were intended to fairly distribute taxation responsibility for extended continued use of
hotel lodging.  The Act now discriminates against property holders who are required to pay ad
valorem taxes for the possession and continued use of real personal property.  Repealing Section
156.101 would allow the possessor and user of hotel lodging to pay hotel occupancy taxes for the
entire time occupancy conditions exist which is in keeping with residence permanency. The
repeal of this exception would result in collection and payment of hotel occupancy taxes in full
to municipalities.

Statewide Importance:  High.  This resolution calls for the repeal of the permanent resident
exception to payment of the hotel occupancy tax as authorized under Tax Code Chapter 156.
Hotel Occupancy Tax, Subchapter C. Exceptions to Tax, Section 156.101, Exception—
Permanent Resident.

Submitted By: Name:  Manuel Longoria, Jr.

Title: City Manager

City: Leon Valley

Telephone:  210-684-1391, Extension 219



2.

A RESOLUTION RELATING TO CHAPTER 145. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX,
SUBCHAPTER C. EXCEPTIONS TO TAX, SEC. 156.101

WHEREAS, the State Legislature authorized the exception to payment of the Hotel Occupancy
Tax for permanent residents for use or possession of a room in a hotel for at least 30 consecutive
days; and

WHEREAS, Subchapter C. Exceptions to Tax, Section 156.101, directly and dramatically affects
the amount of hotel-motel taxes which may be imposed and collected by the comptroller to
municipal governments; and

WHEREAS, the repeal of the Section 156.101, would reflect a more equitable distribution of tax
collection for permanent residency as required of the State’s property holders throughout the life
of the use or possession of taxable property;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the delegates assembled at this 2012 Annual
Conference of the Texas Municipal League that the League seeks introduction and passage of
legislation that would repeal Section 156.101 of the Hotel Occupancy Tax.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the membership of the Texas Municipal League this ___th day
of October, 2012, at Grapevine, Texas.

APPROVED:

_____________________________
Robert Cluck
President

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Bennett Sandlin
Executive Director



TAX CODE

TI TLE 2.  STATE TAXATI ON

SUBTI TLE E.  SALES,  EXCI SE,  AND USE TAXES

CHAPTER 156.  HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

SUBCHAPTER A.  DEFI NI TI ONS

Sec.  156. 001.   DEFI NI TI ON.   I n t hi s chapt er ,  " hot el "  means a
bui l di ng i n whi ch member s of  t he publ i c obt ai n s l eepi ng
accommodat i ons f or  consi der at i on.   The t er m i ncl udes a hot el ,  mot el ,
t our i st  home,  t our i st  house,  t our i st  cour t ,  l odgi ng house,  i nn,
r oomi ng house,  or  bed and br eakf ast .   The t er m does not  i ncl ude:

( 1)   a hospi t al ,  sani t ar i um,  or  nur si ng home;
( 2)   a dor mi t or y or  ot her  housi ng f aci l i t y  owned or  l eased

and oper at ed by an i nst i t ut i on of  hi gher  educat i on or  a pr i vat e or
i ndependent  i nst i t ut i on of  hi gher  educat i on as t hose t er ms ar e
def i ned by Sect i on 61. 003,  Educat i on Code,  used by t he i nst i t ut i on
f or  t he pur pose of  pr ovi di ng s l eepi ng accommodat i ons f or  per sons
engaged i n an educat i onal  pr ogr am or  act i v i t y at  t he i nst i t ut i on;  or

( 3)   an oi l f i el d por t abl e uni t ,  as def i ned by Sect i on
152. 001.

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1686,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.
Amended by Act s 1993,  73r d Leg. ,  ch.  486,  Sec.  5. 01,  ef f .  Oct .  1,
1994;   Act s 1995,  74t h Leg. ,  ch.  454,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Sept .  1,  1995;
Act s 1995,  74t h Leg. ,  ch.  1000,  Sec.  56,  ef f .  Oct .  1,  1995.
Amended by:

Act s 2011,  82nd Leg. ,  R. S. ,  Ch. 566,  Sec.  3,  ef f .  Sept ember  1,
2011.

SUBCHAPTER B.  TAX

Sec.  156. 051.   TAX I MPOSED.   ( a)   A t ax i s i mposed on a per son
who,  under  a l ease,  concessi on,  per mi t ,  r i ght  of  access,  l i cense,
cont r act ,  or  agr eement ,  pays f or  t he use or  possessi on or  f or  t he
r i ght  t o t he use or  possessi on of  a r oom or  space i n a hot el  cost i ng

Page1 of 11TAX CODE CHAPTER 156. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

08/30/2012file:///C:/Users/jwillman/AppData/Local/Temp/Framework/2%20-%20TAX%20CODE ...



$15 or  mor e each day.
( b)   The pr i ce of  a r oom i n a hot el  does not  i ncl ude t he cost

of  f ood ser ved by t he hot el  and t he cost  of  per sonal  ser vi ces
per f or med by t he hot el  f or  t he per son except  f or  t hose ser vi ces
r el at ed t o c l eani ng and r eadyi ng t he r oom f or  use or  possessi on.

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1686,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.
Amended by Act s 2003,  78t h Leg. ,  ch.  209,  Sec.  28,  ef f .  Oct .  1,  2003.

Sec.  156. 052.   RATE OF TAX.   The r at e of  t he t ax i mposed by
t hi s chapt er  i s s i x per cent  of  t he pr i ce pai d f or  a r oom i n a hot el .

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1686,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.
Amended by Act s 1984,  68t h Leg. ,  2nd C. S. ,  ch.  31,  ar t .  5,  Sec.  1,
ef f .  Oct .  2,  1984;   Act s 1987,  70t h Leg. ,  2nd C. S. ,  ch.  5,  ar t .  5,
Sec.  1.

Sec.  156. 053.   COLLECTI ON OF TAX.   A per son owni ng,  oper at i ng,
managi ng,  or  cont r ol l i ng a hot el  shal l  col l ect  f or  t he st at e t he t ax
t hat  i s  i mposed by t hi s chapt er  and t hat  i s  cal cul at ed on t he amount
pai d f or  a r oom i n t he hot el .

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1686,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.

SUBCHAPTER C.  EXCEPTI ONS TO TAX

Sec.  156. 101.   EXCEPTI ON- - PERMANENT RESI DENT.   Thi s chapt er
does not  i mpose a t ax on a per son who has t he r i ght  t o use or  possess
a r oom i n a hot el  f or  at  l east  30 consecut i ve days,  so l ong as t her e
i s no i nt er r upt i on of  payment  f or  t he per i od.

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1686,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.
Amended by Act s 1991,  72nd Leg. ,  ch.  328,  Sec.  4,  ef f .  Aug.  26,  1991.

Sec.  156. 102.   EXCEPTI ON- - RELI GI OUS,  CHARI TABLE,  OR EDUCATI ONAL
ORGANI ZATI ON.   ( a)   Thi s chapt er  does not  i mpose a t ax on a
cor por at i on or  associ at i on t hat  i s  or gani zed and oper at ed excl usi vel y
f or  a r el i gi ous,  char i t abl e,  or  educat i onal  pur pose i f  no par t  of  t he

Page2 of 11TAX CODE CHAPTER 156. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

08/30/2012file:///C:/Users/jwillman/AppData/Local/Temp/Framework/2%20-%20TAX%20CODE ...



net  ear ni ngs of  t he cor por at i on or  associ at i on i nur e t o t he
benef i t  of  a pr i vat e shar ehol der  or  i ndi v i dual .

( b)   For  pur poses of  t hi s sect i on:
( 1)   a cor por at i on or  associ at i on t hat  i s  or gani zed and

oper at ed excl usi vel y f or  t he c l eani ng of  beaches and t hat  has no par t
of  i t s  net  ear ni ngs i nur e t o t he benef i t  of  a pr i vat e shar ehol der  or
i ndi v i dual  i s  or gani zed and oper at ed excl usi vel y f or  a char i t abl e
pur pose;   and

( 2) a publ i c or  pr i vat e i nst i t ut i on of  hi gher  educat i on
i s or gani zed and oper at ed excl usi vel y f or  an educat i onal  pur pose onl y
i f  t he i nst i t ut i on i s def i ned as a Texas i nst i t ut i on of  hi gher
educat i on or  as a Texas pr i vat e or  i ndependent  i nst i t ut i on of  hi gher
educat i on under  any subdi v i s i on of  Sect i on 61. 003,  Educat i on Code.

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1686,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.
Amended by Act s 1999,  76t h Leg. ,  ch.  1359,  Sec.  2,  ef f .  Sept .  1,
1999;   Act s 1999,  76t h Leg. ,  ch.  1467,  Sec.  2. 48,  ef f .  Oct .  1,  1999;
Act s 2001,  77t h Leg. ,  ch.  1420,  Sec.  18. 011,  ef f .  Sept .  1,  2001;
Act s 2003,  78t h Leg. ,  ch.  209,  Sec.  29,  ef f .  Oct .  1,  2003.

Sec.  156. 103.   EXCEPTI ON- - STATE AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENT.   ( a)
Thi s chapt er  does not  i mpose a t ax on:

( 1)   t he Uni t ed St at es;
( 2)   a gover nment al  ent i t y of  t he Uni t ed St at es;   or
( 3)   an of f i cer  or  empl oyee of  a gover nment al  ent i t y of

t he Uni t ed St at es when t r avel i ng on or  ot her wi se engaged i n t he
cour se of  of f i c i al  dut i es f or  t he gover nment al  ent i t y.

( b)   Thi s st at e,  or  an agency,  i nst i t ut i on,  boar d,  or
commi ssi on of  t hi s st at e ot her  t han an i nst i t ut i on of  hi gher
educat i on shal l  pay t he t ax i mposed by t hi s chapt er  and i s ent i t l ed
t o a r ef und of  t he amount  of  t ax pai d i n accor dance wi t h Sect i on
156. 154.

( c)   A st at e of f i cer  or  empl oyee of  a st at e gover nment al  ent i t y
descr i bed by Subsect i on ( b)  who i s ent i t l ed t o r ei mbur sement  f or  t he
cost  of  l odgi ng and f or  whom a speci al  pr ovi s i on or  except i on t o t he
gener al  r at e of  r ei mbur sement  under  t he Gener al  Appr opr i at i ons Act  i s
not  appl i cabl e shal l  pay t he t ax i mposed by t hi s chapt er .  The st at e
gover nment al  ent i t y wi t h whom t he per son i s associ at ed i s ent i t l ed

Page3 of 11TAX CODE CHAPTER 156. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

08/30/2012file:///C:/Users/jwillman/AppData/Local/Temp/Framework/2%20-%20TAX%20CODE ...



under  Sect i on 156. 154 t o a r ef und of  t he t ax pai d.
( d)   A st at e of f i cer  or  empl oyee of  a st at e gover nment al  ent i t y

descr i bed by Subsect i on ( b)  f or  whom a speci al  pr ovi s i on or  except i on
t o t he gener al  r at e of  r ei mbur sement  under  t he Gener al  Appr opr i at i ons
Act  appl i es and who i s pr ovi ded wi t h phot o i dent i f i cat i on ver i f y i ng
t he i dent i t y and exempt  st at us of  t he per son i s not  r equi r ed t o pay
t he t ax and i s not  ent i t l ed t o a r ef und.   The phot o i dent i f i cat i on of
a st at e of f i cer  or  empl oyee descr i bed by t hi s sect i on may be modi f i ed
f or  t he pur poses of  t hi s sect i on.

( e)   I n t hi s sect i on,  " i nst i t ut i on of  hi gher  educat i on"  has t he
meani ng assi gned by Sect i on 61. 003,  Educat i on Code.

Added by Act s 1989,  71st  Leg. ,  ch.  504,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Sept .  1,  1989.
Amended by Act s 1995,  74t h Leg. ,  ch.  454,  Sec.  2,  ef f .  Sept .  1,
1995;   Act s 1999,  76t h Leg. ,  ch.  1467,  Sec.  2. 49,  ef f .  Oct .  1,  1999.

Sec.  156. 104.   EXEMPTI ON CERTI FI CATE.   ( a)   The r i ght  t o use or
possess a r oom or  space i n a hot el  i s  exempt  f r om t axat i on under  t hi s
chapt er  i f  t he per son r equi r ed t o col l ect  t he t ax r ecei ves,  i n good
f ai t h f r om a guest ,  a pr oper l y compl et ed exempt i on cer t i f i cat e
st at i ng t hat  t he guest  i s qual i f i ed f or  an exempt i on under  Sect i on
156. 102 or  156. 103.   An exempt i on cer t i f i cat e must  be suppor t ed by
t he document at i on r equi r ed under  r ul es adopt ed by t he compt r ol l er .

( b)   The compt r ol l er  shal l  pr oduce and mai nt ai n a l i s t  of
ent i t i es t hat  have been pr ovi ded a l et t er  of  exempt i on f r om t he st at e
hot el  occupancy t ax under  Sect i on 156. 102.   The compt r ol l er  shal l
make t he l i s t  avai l abl e on t he compt r ol l er ' s I nt er net  websi t e.

Added by Act s 2003,  78t h Leg. ,  ch.  209,  Sec.  30,  ef f .  Oct .  1,  2003.

SUBCHAPTER D.  REPORTS AND PAYMENTS

Sec.  156. 151.   REPORT AND PAYMENT.   ( a)   A per son r equi r ed t o
col l ect  t he t ax i mposed by t hi s chapt er  shal l  pay t he compt r ol l er  t he
t ax col l ect ed dur i ng t he pr ecedi ng r epor t i ng per i od and at  t he same
t i me shal l  f i l e wi t h t he compt r ol l er  a r epor t  st at i ng:

( 1)   t he t ot al  amount  of  t he payment s made f or  r ooms at
t he per son' s hot el  dur i ng t he pr ecedi ng r epor t i ng per i od;

Page4 of 11TAX CODE CHAPTER 156. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

08/30/2012file:///C:/Users/jwillman/AppData/Local/Temp/Framework/2%20-%20TAX%20CODE ...



( 2)   t he amount  of  t he t ax col l ect ed by t he per son dur i ng
t he pr ecedi ng r epor t i ng per i od;   and

( 3)   ot her  i nf or mat i on t hat  t he compt r ol l er  r equi r es t o be
i n t he r epor t .

( b)   Except  as pr ovi ded by Subsect i on ( c) ,  each cal endar  mont h
i s a r epor t i ng per i od and t he t axes i mposed by and col l ect ed under
t hi s chapt er  ar e due and payabl e t o t he compt r ol l er  on or  bef or e t he
20t h day of  t he mont h f ol l owi ng t he end of  each cal endar  mont h.

( c)   I f  a t axpayer  owes l ess t han $500 f or  a cal endar  mont h or
$1, 500 f or  a cal endar  quar t er ,  t he t axpayer  qual i f i es as a quar t er l y
f i l er  havi ng a r epor t i ng per i od of  a cal endar  quar t er  and t he t axes
ar e due and payabl e on t he 20t h day af t er  t he end of  t he cal endar
quar t er .

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1687,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.
Amended by Act s 1993,  73r d Leg. ,  ch.  486,  Sec.  5. 02,  ef f .  Oct .  1,
1994.

Sec.  156. 152.   ACCESS TO BOOKS AND RECORDS.   Af t er  t he
compt r ol l er  gi ves r easonabl e not i ce t o a per son t hat  t he compt r ol l er
i nt ends t o i nspect  t he books or  r ecor ds of  t he per son,  t he
compt r ol l er  has access t o t he per son' s books or  r ecor ds necessar y f or
t he compt r ol l er  t o det er mi ne t he cor r ect ness of  a r epor t  f i l ed under
t hi s chapt er  or  t he amount  of  t axes due under  t hi s chapt er .

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1687,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.

Sec.  156. 153.   REI MBURSEMENT FOR TAX COLLECTI ON.   The per son
r equi r ed t o f i l e a r epor t  under  t hi s chapt er  may deduct  and wi t hhol d
f r om t he t axes ot her wi se due t o t he st at e on t he mont hl y or  quar t er l y
r et ur n,  as r ei mbur sement  f or  t he cost  of  col l ect i ng t he t ax,  one
per cent  of  t he amount  of  t he t ax due as shown on t he r epor t .   I f
t axes due under  t hi s chapt er  ar e not  pai d t o t he st at e wi t hi n t he
t i me r equi r ed or  i f  t he per son r equi r ed t o f i l e a r epor t  f ai l s  t o
f i l e t he r epor t  when due,  t he per son f or f ei t s t he c l ai m t o
r ei mbur sement  t hat  coul d have been t aken i f  t he t ax had been pai d or
t he r epor t  f i l ed when due.

Page5 of 11TAX CODE CHAPTER 156. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

08/30/2012file:///C:/Users/jwillman/AppData/Local/Temp/Framework/2%20-%20TAX%20CODE ...



Added by Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  2779,  ch.  752,  Sec.  11,  ef f .  Jan.
1,  1982.   Amended by Act s 1993,  73r d Leg. ,  ch.  486,  Sec.  5. 03,  ef f .
Oct .  1,  1994.

Sec.  156. 154.   REFUND.   ( a)   A gover nment al  ent i t y t hat  i s
ent i t l ed under  Sect i on 156. 103 t o a r ef und of  t axes pai d under  t hi s
chapt er  must  f i l e a r ef und cl ai m wi t h t he compt r ol l er .

( b)   The cl ai m must  be f i l ed on a f or m pr ovi ded by t he
compt r ol l er  and cont ai n t he i nf or mat i on r equi r ed by t he compt r ol l er .

( c)   A c l ai m f or  a r ef und may be f i l ed onl y f or  each f i scal
year  quar t er  f or  al l  r ei mbur sement s accr ued dur i ng t hat  quar t er .

Added by Act s 1995,  74t h Leg. ,  ch.  454,  Sec.  3,  ef f .  Sept .  1,  1995.
Amended by Act s 2001,  77t h Leg. ,  ch.  1158,  Sec.  91,  ef f .  Sept .  1,
2001.

SUBCHAPTER E.  ENFORCEMENT

Sec.  156. 201.   I NTEREST ON DELI NQUENT TAXES.   A t ax i mposed by
t hi s chapt er  t hat  i s  not  pai d t o t he compt r ol l er  when i t  i s  due dr aws
i nt er est  as pr ovi ded by Sect i on 111. 060 of  t hi s code.

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1687,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.

Sec.  156. 202.   PENALTY.   ( a)   I f  t he per son who i s r equi r ed t o
pay t o t he compt r ol l er  t he t ax i mposed by t hi s chapt er  f ai l s  t o f i l e
a r epor t  or  does not  pay t he t ax when i t  i s  due,  t he per son shal l
f or f ei t  t o t he st at e a penal t y of  f i ve per cent  of  t he amount  of  t ax
due.

( b)   I f  t he per son who i s r equi r ed t o pay t he t ax t o t he
compt r ol l er  does not  pay t he t ax wi t hi n 30 days af t er  i t  i s  due,  t he
per son shal l  f or f ei t  t o t he st at e a penal t y of  an addi t i onal  f i ve
per cent  of  t he amount  of  t ax due.

( c)   The mi ni mum penal t y under  Subsect i ons ( a)  and ( b)  i s $1.
( d)   I n addi t i on t o any ot her  penal t y aut hor i zed by t hi s

sect i on,  a per son who f ai l s t o f i l e a r epor t  as r equi r ed by t hi s
chapt er  shal l  pay a penal t y of  $50.   The penal t y pr ovi ded by t hi s
subsect i on i s assessed wi t hout  r egar d t o whet her  t he t axpayer

Page6 of 11TAX CODE CHAPTER 156. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

08/30/2012file:///C:/Users/jwillman/AppData/Local/Temp/Framework/2%20-%20TAX%20CODE ...



subsequent l y f i l es t he r epor t  or  whet her  any t axes wer e due
f r om t he t axpayer  f or  t he r epor t i ng per i od under  t he r equi r ed r epor t .

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1687,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.
Amended by:

Act s 2011,  82nd Leg. ,  1st  C. S. ,  Ch. 4,  Sec.  14. 06,  ef f .  Oct ober
1,  2011.

Sec.  156. 203.   CRI MI NAL PENALTY.   ( a)   A per son commi t s an
of f ense i f  t he per son f ai l s  t o f i l e a r epor t  wi t h t he compt r ol l er ,
col l ect  a t ax f or  t he st at e,  or  pay a t ax t o t he compt r ol l er  as t he
per son i s r equi r ed t o do by t hi s chapt er .

( b)   An of f ense under  t hi s sect i on i s a mi sdemeanor  puni shabl e
by a f i ne of  not  l ess t han $100 or  mor e t han $1, 000.

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1687,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.

Sec.  156. 204.   TAX COLLECTI ON ON TERMI NATI ON OF BUSI NESS.   ( a)
I f  a per son who i s l i abl e f or  t he payment  of  an amount  under  Sect i on
156. 151 of  t hi s code i s t he owner  of  t he hot el  and sel l s t he hot el ,
t he successor  t o t he sel l er  or  t he sel l er ' s assi gnee shal l  wi t hhol d
an amount  of  t he pur chase pr i ce suf f i c i ent  t o pay t he amount  due
unt i l  t he sel l er  pr ovi des a r ecei pt  f r om t he st at e compt r ol l er
showi ng t hat  t he amount  has been pai d or  a cer t i f i cat e st at i ng t hat
no amount  i s due.

( b)   The pur chaser  of  a hot el  who f ai l s  t o wi t hhol d an amount
of  t he pur chase pr i ce as r equi r ed by t hi s sect i on i s l i abl e f or  t he
amount  r equi r ed t o be wi t hhel d t o t he ext ent  of  t he val ue of  t he
pur chase pr i ce.

( c)   The pur chaser  of  a hot el  may r equest  t hat  t he compt r ol l er
i ssue a cer t i f i cat e st at i ng t hat  no t ax i s due or  i ssue a st at ement
of  t he amount  r equi r ed t o be pai d bef or e a cer t i f i cat e may be
i ssued.   The compt r ol l er  shal l  i ssue t he cer t i f i cat e or  st at ement
wi t hi n 60 days af t er  r ecei v i ng t he r equest  or  wi t hi n 60 days af t er
t he day on whi ch t he r ecor ds of  t he f or mer  owner  of  t he hot el  ar e
made avai l abl e f or  audi t ,  whi chever  per i od expi r es l at er ,  but  i n
ei t her  event  t he compt r ol l er  shal l  i ssue t he cer t i f i cat e or  st at ement
wi t hi n 90 days af t er  t he dat e of  r ecei v i ng t he r equest .

Page7 of 11TAX CODE CHAPTER 156. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

08/30/2012file:///C:/Users/jwillman/AppData/Local/Temp/Framework/2%20-%20TAX%20CODE ...



( d)   I f  t he compt r ol l er  f ai l s  t o mai l  t he cer t i f i cat e or
st at ement  wi t hi n t he appl i cabl e per i od pr ovi ded by Subsect i on ( c)  of
t hi s sect i on,  t he pur chaser  i s r el eased f r om t he obl i gat i on t o
wi t hhol d t he pur chase pr i ce or  pay t he amount  due.

( e)   The per i od of  l i mi t at i on dur i ng whi ch t he compt r ol l er  may
assess t ax agai nst  t he pur chaser  under  t hi s sect i on i s f our  year s
f r om t he dat e when t he f or mer  owner  of  t he hot el  sel l s t he hot el  or
when a det er mi nat i on i s made agai nst  t he f or mer  owner ,  whi chever
event  occur s l at er .   At  any t i me wi t hi n t hr ee year s af t er  a
def i c i ency det er mi nat i on agai nst  t he pur chaser  has become due and
payabl e t he compt r ol l er  may br i ng an act i on i n a di st r i ct  cour t  of
Tr avi s Count y or  a cour t  of  any ot her  st at e of  t he Uni t ed St at es i n
t he name of  t he peopl e of  Texas t o col l ect  t he del i nquent  amount s
t oget her  wi t h penal t i es and i nt er est .

Added by Act s 1983,  68t h Leg. ,  p.  302,  ch.  65,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  May 3,
1983.

SUBCHAPTER F.  DI SPOSI TI ON OF REVENUE

Sec.  156. 251.   REVENUE DEPOSI TED I N GENERAL REVENUE FUND.   ( a)
The r evenue f r om t he t ax i mposed by t hi s chapt er  shal l  be deposi t ed
i n t he st at e t r easur y t o t he cr edi t  of  t he gener al  r evenue f und.

( b) ,  ( c)  Expi r ed.
( d)   An amount  equal  t o t he amount  of  r evenue der i ved f r om t he

col l ect i on of  t axes i mposed by t hi s chapt er  at  a r at e of  one- hal f  of
one per cent  shal l  be al l ocat ed i n t he gener al  r evenue f und t o be used
f or  medi a adver t i s i ng and ot her  mar ket i ng act i v i t i es of  t he Tour i sm
Di vi s i on of  t he Texas Depar t ment  of  Commer ce.    Sect i on 403. 094( h) ,
Gover nment  Code,  does not  appl y t o f unds descr i bed i n t hi s sect i on.
Thi s subsect i on t akes ef f ect  Oct ober  1,  1994.

Act s 1981,  67t h Leg. ,  p.  1688,  ch.  389,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jan.  1,  1982.
Amended by Act s 1985,  69t h Leg. ,  ch.  651,  Sec.  8,  ef f .  Aug.  26,
1985;   Act s 1987,  70t h Leg. ,  2nd C. S. ,  ch.  5,  ar t .  5,  Sec.  2;   Act s
1993,  73r d Leg. ,  ch.  986,  Sec.  34,  ef f .  Sept .  1,  1993.

Sec.  156. 2511.   ALLOCATI ON OF CERTAI N REVENUE.   ( a)   Not  l at er

Page8 of 11TAX CODE CHAPTER 156. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

08/30/2012file:///C:/Users/jwillman/AppData/Local/Temp/Framework/2%20-%20TAX%20CODE ...



t han t he l ast  day of  t he mont h f ol l owi ng a cal endar  quar t er ,
t he compt r ol l er  shal l :

( 1)   comput e t he amount  of  r evenue der i ved f r om t he
col l ect i on of  t axes i mposed under  t hi s chapt er  at  a r at e of  t wo
per cent  and r ecei ved f r om hot el s l ocat ed i n an el i gi bl e coast al
muni ci pal i t y t hat  has cr eat ed a par k boar d of  t r ust ees t o admi ni st er
publ i c beaches under  Chapt er  306,  Local  Gover nment  Code;   and

( 2)   i ssue t o t he el i gi bl e coast al  muni ci pal i t y a war r ant
dr awn on t he gener al  r evenue f und i n t he amount  comput ed under
Subdi v i s i on ( 1) .

( b)   An el i gi bl e coast al  muni ci pal i t y may use money r ecei ved
under  t hi s sect i on onl y t o c l ean and mai nt ai n publ i c beaches i n t hat
muni ci pal i t y.

( c)   Sect i on 403. 094( h) ,  Gover nment  Code,  does not  appl y t o
f unds descr i bed by Subsect i on ( a) .

( d)   I n t hi s sect i on:
( 1)   " El i gi bl e coast al  muni ci pal i t y"  has t he meani ng

assi gned by Sect i on 351. 001.
( 2)   " Cl ean and mai nt ai n"  has t he meani ng assi gned by

Sect i on 61. 063,  Nat ur al  Resour ces Code.

Added by Act s 1995,  74t h Leg. ,  ch.  454,  Sec.  4,  ef f .  Sept .  1,  1995.

Sec.  156. 2512.   ALLOCATI ON OF REVENUE TO CERTAI N
MUNI CI PALI TI ES.   ( a)   Not  l at er  t han t he l ast  day of  t he mont h
f ol l owi ng a cal endar  quar t er ,  t he compt r ol l er  shal l :

( 1)   comput e t he amount  of  r evenue der i ved f r om t he
col l ect i on of  t axes i mposed under  t hi s chapt er  at  a r at e of  one
per cent  and r ecei ved f r om hot el s l ocat ed on bar r i er  i s l ands i n an
el i gi bl e bar r i er  i s l and coast al  muni ci pal i t y;   and

( 2)   i ssue t o t he el i gi bl e bar r i er  i s l and coast al
muni ci pal i t y a war r ant  dr awn on t he gener al  r evenue f und i n t he
amount  comput ed under  Subdi v i s i on ( 1) .

( b)   An el i gi bl e bar r i er  i s l and coast al  muni ci pal i t y may use
money r ecei ved under  t hi s sect i on onl y:

( 1)   t o c l ean and mai nt ai n publ i c beaches i n t hat
muni ci pal i t y;  and

( 2)   f or  an er osi on r esponse pr oj ect  i n t hat  muni ci pal i t y.

Page9 of 11TAX CODE CHAPTER 156. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

08/30/2012file:///C:/Users/jwillman/AppData/Local/Temp/Framework/2%20-%20TAX%20CODE ...



( c)   I n t hi s sect i on:
( 2)   " Cl ean and mai nt ai n"  has t he meani ng assi gned by

Sect i on 61. 063,  Nat ur al  Resour ces Code.
( 3)   " Er osi on r esponse pr oj ect "  has t he meani ng assi gned

by Sect i on 33. 601,  Nat ur al  Resour ces Code.
( 1)   " El i gi bl e bar r i er  i s l and coast al  muni ci pal i t y"  means

a muni ci pal i t y:
( A)   t hat  bor der s on t he Gul f  of  Mexi co;
( B)   t hat  i s  l ocat ed whol l y or  par t l y on a bar r i er

i s l and;  and
( C)   t he boundar i es of  whi ch ar e wi t hi n 30 mi l es of

t he Uni t ed Mexi can St at es or  i ncl ude:
( i )   a por t i on of  a nat i onal  seashor e;  or
( i i )   a nat i onal  est uar i ne r esear ch r eser ve.

Added by Act s 1999,  76t h Leg. ,  ch.  1359,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Sept .  1,  1999.
Amended by:

Act s 2007,  80t h Leg. ,  R. S. ,  Ch. 1192,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  June 15,
2007.

Act s 2009,  81st  Leg. ,  R. S. ,  Ch. 667,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Jul y 1,  2009.

Sec.  156. 2513.   ALLOCATI ON OF REVENUE TO CERTAI N MUNI CI PALI TI ES
AND COUNTI ES.   Not  l at er  t han t he l ast  day of  t he mont h f ol l owi ng a
cal endar  quar t er ,  t he compt r ol l er  shal l :

( 1)   comput e t he amount  of  r evenue,  excl udi ng penal t i es
and i nt er est  and amount s pai d under  pr ot est ,  der i ved f r om t he
col l ect i on of  t axes i mposed by t hi s chapt er  t hat  r esul t ed f r om
document at i on or  ot her  i nf or mat i on descr i bed by Sect i on 351. 008 or
352. 008;  and

( 2)   i ssue a war r ant  dr awn on t he gener al  r evenue f und i n
t he amount  of  20 per cent  of  t he r evenue comput ed under  Subdi v i s i on
( 1)  t o t he muni ci pal i t y or  count y t hat  pr ovi ded t he document at i on or
ot her  i nf or mat i on.

Added by Act s 2011,  82nd Leg. ,  R. S. ,  Ch. 1152,  Sec.  1,  ef f .  Sept ember
1,  2011.

Page10 of 11TAX CODE CHAPTER 156. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

08/30/2012file:///C:/Users/jwillman/AppData/Local/Temp/Framework/2%20-%20TAX%20CODE ...



Page11 of 11TAX CODE CHAPTER 156. HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

08/30/2012file:///C:/Users/jwillman/AppData/Local/Temp/Framework/2%20-%20TAX%20CODE ...









Agenda Item 10

MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: September 4, 2012
M&C:  # 09-05-12

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: DISCUSS AND CONSIDER ACTION ON THE LEON VALLEY
HISTORICAL SOCIETY’S (LVHS) REQUEST

PURPOSE
The Leon Valley City Council received an Annual Report by the Leon Valley Historical
Society (LVHS) at its April 17, 2012 Regular City Council Meeting in keeping with its Lease
Agreement.  The LVHS made a formal request for consideration by the City Council, to-
wit:

A. Award of a $2,400 Matching Grant to the LVHS for Payment of a Portion of
Architectural Costs and Staff Fees Associated with Fulfilling Best Practices
Requirements for the Dismantling of the Collapsed Farm Shed on Bandera Road
Frontage.

The City Council at its May 15, 2012 Regular City Council Meeting directed that this item
be brought back with an explanation regarding why this amount was not included in the
previous grant match request in December 2011.

FISCAL IMPACT
As may be authorized by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Not applicable.

S.E.E IMPACT STATEMENT
Social Equity – Local governments that practice transparency and due diligence as a part
of their administrative and governance practices ensure optimal Social Equity and services
for their residents, business owners, and community stakeholders. The Historic Huebner-
Onion Homestead and the Natural Area are considered among Leon Valley’s cultural and
historical amenities provided to the City’s citizens, businesses, and community
stakeholders.
Economic Development – Local governments that provide cultural and historical
amenities attract and retain quality Economic Development.
Environmental Stewardship – The City of Leon Valley has, in its mission and value
statements, a commitment to Environmental Stewardship. Environmentally stabilizing the
Historic Huebner-Onion Homestead and the Natural Area along Bandera Road
demonstrates the City Council’s commitment to Environmental Stewardship and ensures
this Leon Valley cultural and historical amenity for perpetuity.

APPROVED: ___________________ DISAPPROVED: _______________

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING COMMENTS: ____________________________

______________________________________________________________________



Agenda Item 10

ATTEST:

________________________
Janie Willman, City Secretary







































































































Agenda Item 11
MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: September 4, 2012
M&C: # 09-06-12

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: CONSIDER A REQUEST BY BRIAN LUMBATIS, OF COMPLETE SIGNS LLC.,
ON BEHALF OF RAISING CANE, PROPERTY OWNER, FOR A VARIANCE
TO CHAPTER 14, “ZONING,” SECTION 14.02.305, “REGULATIONS FOR
ALL DISTRICTS, SUBSECTION (m), “OVERLAY DISTRICTS,” APPENDIX C,
SECTION G.2 (b.), “MONUMENT SIGNS,” TO ALLOW A 30-FOOT TALL
POLE SIGN WITH A SIGN FACE MEASURING 128 SQUARE FEET AT 7020
BANDERA ROAD

PURPOSE
The applicant believes that due to the existing sign clutter, power lines, the line of sight and
business location a monument sign will not be adequate to advertise their business, so they are
asking for a pole sign with a 128 square foot sign face that measures 30-feet in height.  In order
to give the pole sign a monument look they have additionally proposed a 3-foot masonry base
that matches the building and a pole design that has 5-foot wide oval cladding.

The applicant began with a number of variance requests but has worked with staff to reduce the
variance requests to one (1).

The Sustainability Overlay allows only monument signage for new construction along Bandera
Road (see attached monument regulations).

If the pole sign is allowed per the standards used for properties along Loop 410 and the flyover,
the proposed sign is well under both the sign height maximum of 45-feet and the sign face area
of 300 square feet (see attached pole sign regulations).

The applicant will be required to landscape around the sign if the proposed pole sign is
approved.

FISCAL IMPACT
$100 was paid for consideration of the sign variance request. If approved, the sign permit fee
will be $100.

RECOMMENDATION
Any action in regard to the sign variance is at the discretion of the City Council. Each variance
request is on a case by case basis for consideration. Staff notes however, that if the trend is
continued with pole signs along Bandera Road and outside the parameters of Loop 410 and the
flyover the visible change that the Council and public are looking for along Bandera Road will
take longer to achieve or may never be achieved. Additionally they have inadvertently noted via
an exhibit to demonstrate landscaping, that they can utilize very nice monument signs on their
business properties (see attached monument sign).

As a side note, Bush’s Chicken is the only new construction within the City that has fully



Agenda Item 11

constructed their building and signage within the confines of the Sustainability Overlay (adopted
November 2010) without a request for a variance.

S.E.E
Social Equity – Variance consideration for the property owner encourages their collaborative
participation in working with the City.
Environmental Stewardship – There is not an environment impact per say as the sign is not
using bright or flashy lighting. There will be a 4-foot landscape buffer around the sign if it is
approved.
Economic Development – Approval of the variance assists the property owner in advertising
their new business in Leon Valley to promote patronage and economic development.

APPROVED: ______________________ DISAPPROVED:  _____________________

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS: ________________________
______________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:
___________________________

Janie Willman, City Secretary



ORDNO. 10-049

G. Signs  

1. Intent.  

These standards are primarily for new projects and reflect the 

reduced need for large extensive signage that has resulted in the 

past from buildings that were constructed towards the rear of the 

site with large set backs from the street. 

The intent of this Section is to establish architectural controls, limit 

clutter and regulate commercial and locational signage. It is also 

intended to help enliven retail and restaurant mixed-use areas.  

While it is the intent to allow for ongoing regular maintenance of 

existing non-conforming signs based on existing sign ordinance 

regulations for non-conforming signs (Section 3.04.007), generally, 

sign improvements should not significantly prolong the life of a 

non-conforming sign. 

2. Proposed additions and changes to current standards 

a. Freestanding Signs

i. All Freestanding business or development identification 

signs must be Monument Signs, except adjacent to Loop 

410 and the flyover. 

b. Monument Signs

i. A maximum of 7 feet in height and a total structure size of 

98 s.f. 

ii. The maximum sign face area shall be 60 s.f. 

iii. Signs shall have a minimum one-foot masonry base 

measured from the ground to the bottom edge of the sign 

iv. Signs shall have a minimum 6-inch border on each side 

and the top. 

v. Building materials and colors utilized for construction of 

monument bases, side borders, caps, and sign frames shall 

be constructed of the same materials found on the main 

Page 17



ORDNO. 10-049

building on the lot, unless otherwise approved by the City 

Council.

c. Pole Signs

i. Pole Signs shall only be permitted on properties 

immediately adjacent to, and fronting, Loop 410 and the 

Flyover.

ii. Maximum Height and Sign Area shall be as follows: 

Height Sign Area

Single 45 ft. 300

Dual 45 ft. 375

Multiple 50 ft.* 500

 * An additional 10 feet of overall height may be added if the 

elevation of the adjacent roadway grade is determined to 

cause particular visibility problems. 

iii. One freestanding sign shall be permitted on each street 

frontage, as follows: 

a)  Less than 250 feet of frontage: One (1) sign. 

b) 250 feet or more of frontage: One (1) sign per 200 
feet of frontage when approved by a master sign 
plan.

iv. No off-site advertising shall be allowed. 

v. Landscape buffer. Unless an alternate method of providing 

traffic and pedestrian safety is approved through the master 

sign plan, each freestanding sign shall be placed within a 

landscaped area extending a minimum four (4) feet from 

the sign in each direction. Such measurements shall begin 

at the sign base or at the edge of any overhang within 20 

feet of the ground, whichever requires the greater barrier. 

Xeriscaping is encouraged. 

d. Wall Signs

i. A maximum of 1.5 square feet of wall sign shall be allowed 

for each one (1) linear foot of primary building face.  

Page 18



“
 

                                                                                                                                                                      
  
 
 
 
 
 
8.21.12 
Ref:   Variance request to the current sign code. 
Address:  Raising Cane’s 7020 Bandera Rd  
 
As Raising Cane’s sign company Complete Signs is representing them for their request to be 
allowed additional and or different signage than the current sign code allows. 
 
Variance 1 
Cane’s strongly feels that strict application of the sign code (in regards to monuments only) to 
their property will cause them great hardship as it relates to sales of their product. 
 
Cane’s hardship would be caused by the customer’s inability to identify Cane’s from any 
distance other than directly in front of the store. If their signage cannot be seen from a distance 
than a customer that knows Cane’s and would prefer to patronize Cane’s may settle for another 
product, because they are unaware that Cane’s is just a little ways farther down the road. 
 
Cane’s location seems to be one of, if not the last vacant lot within a mile or two (see attachment 
“overhead”).  All the other businesses (some of which are direct competitors) have large signs 
(see Pic 1-3) and therefore have good visibility.  In fact when we visited the site it appeared that 
no other business on the street had a monument sign, all were pylons, and some were very large.  
 
Please see attachments approach 1-3.  When you view these three photos it becomes very clear 
that a 7’ high monument would from a distance not even be seen above oncoming cars.  
 
Please see attachment approach 2, our building will almost be completely blocked from view by 
the What a Burger building.  Without a large enough sign customers will not know that Cane’s is 
just down the road. 
 
Please see Attachments “next door” and “next door 2” These are the two signs that will be on 
both sides of our business.    
 
The attached drawing “Pylon” is the sign we feel would be in keeping with the other signs on the 
street, and next to our business… and would allow us to have equal visibility compared to other 
businesses. 
 
Thank You  
Brian Lumbatis 

 
Complete Signs LLC 











 



 



 









FRONT VIEW SIDE VIEW

Customer:  Canes
Created: 04/18/07

Revised: 

Dwg:  Pylon

Raising Canes
Pylon

Color renderings are for presentation only and should not be considered as manufacturing drawings.

Scale:  3/16”= 1’-0” 

illustrated by: Roland

3’-0” High Brick Base (To Match Building)
by General Contractor

5’-0” Wide Oval Cladding
3

0
-0

’ 
 

o
a

h

R

16'-0"  

8
'-0

" 
 

4” Reveal 

R



City of Leon Valley
City Council

Consider a Sign Variance – A Request
to allow a Pole Sign rather than a
Monument Sign at 7020 Bandera Road

September 4, 2012



Purpose

• Applicant: Brian Lumbatis, Complete
Signs, LLC., on Behalf of Raising Cane

• Variance to Chapter 14, “Monument
Signs”
- to Allow a Pole Sign at 7020 Bandera Road



Purpose

• Ordinance Allows Monument Signs only
for New Construction projects within the
Sustainability Overlay
-maximum of 7-feet high and a total
structure size of 98 square feet

-maximum sign face of 60 square feet



Purpose

• Monument Guidelines
-one (1) foot masonry base
-six (6) inch border
- building materials ad colors for
construction of base/sides/caps and
frames to match building















Purpose

• Overlay Pole Sign Guidelines for
properties adjacent to Loop 410 and the
flyover
-maximum height 45-feet and sign area of
300 square feet
-one (1) sign for 250-feet of frontage
-no off-site advertising
-landscape buffering of 4-feet



Purpose

• Proposed Sign
-thirty (30) feet tall
-plastic sign face (128 square feet)
-five (5) foot oval cladding
-three (3) foot masonry base to match bldg









Fiscal Impact

• $100 paid for sign variance consideration
• If approved, $100 for sign permit



City of Leon Valley
City Council

Consider a Sign Variance – A Request
to allow a Pole Sign rather than a
Monument Sign at 7020 Bandera Road

September 4, 2012





Agenda Item 12
MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: September 4, 2012
M&C:    #09-07-12

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: CONDUCT PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AN AMENDMENT – WITH
ATTACHED ORDINANCE - TO CHAPTER 14, “ZONING” APPENDIX 2,
“OVERLAY BOUNDARIES,” MAP AND APPENDIX 2A,
“SUSTAINABILITY OVERLAY,” MAP AND 2C,
“COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL OVERLAY,” MAP TO MOVE 6300 AND
6320 BANDERA ROAD, BEING LOT 5 AND NW IRR 285 FEET OF LOT
6, BLOCK 1, LINCOLN MERCURY SUBDIVISION, CB 4429H AND LOT 2
AND NE 25.10 FEET OF SE 387.74 FEET OF LOT 6, BLOCK 1, CB
4429H, B-3 (COMMERCIAL) ZONED PROPERTIES FROM THE
SUSTAINABILITY OVERLAY TO THE COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL
OVERLAY AND PROVIDING A PENALTY OF UP TO TWO THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($2000)

PURPOSE
The attached memo from the City Manager to the Zoning Commission outlines the
requested change and the reasons for the request.

There is a developer interested in investing approximately $7 million into the former Fiesta
Dodge location and in order to utilize the property has asked the City to consider moving
the property from the Sustainability Overlay to the Commercial/Industrial Overlay.

The property will still be protected by overlay regulations, however the
Commercial/Industrial Overlay will allow for automotive sales/rentals.

FISCAL IMPACT
Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION
On August 28, 2012 the Zoning Commission recommended approval of the amendment
moving 6300 and 6320 Bandera Road from the Sustainability Overlay to the
Commercial/Industrial Overlay with an addendum to include a Memorandum by Jim
Carrillo of Halff Associates to by a vote of 6-1.

S.E.E IMPACT STATEMENT
Social Equity – this change encourages collaborative participation by businesses and
stakeholders with the City.
Environmental Stewardship – the property will be revitalized and beautified with
streetscape and landscape.
Economic Development – removing these two (2) properties from the overlay will promote
economic development by allowing the properties to be utilized and leased; supporting ad
valorem taxes, revenue generation and business progress in the City.

APPROVED:___________________ DISAPPROVED:_______________



APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING COMMENTS:____________________________

______________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

________________________
Janie Willman, City Secretary



Date:

To:

From:

RE:

City of Leon Valley
Memorandum

August 21, 2012

Zoning Commission Chair Claude Guerra III & the Zoning Commission

Manuel Longoria Jr., City Manager /lit L- ~ 7"Overlay Revision Concerning 6300 & 6320 Bandera Road
(former Fiesta Dodge site)

After two recent executive session meetings regarding the above noted site the Mayor
and City Council have directed me to initiate an overlay change which would take this
property out of the Sustainability Overlay and move it into the Commercial/Industrial
Overlay for a user that is interested in investing approximately $7 million into the site.

The development of the site would include: primary owner Enterprise Rental
(commercial side of the company), either a local car dealership or one from Austin,
Texas, and a family-style restaurant like the Willie's concept already established in San
Antonio. The goal is to make the restaurant a destination location due to the property's
accessibility and proximity to the flyover (see attached exhibit). The development would
conform to the Commercial/Industrial Overlay standards and the site would be enhanced
with streetscape and landscape. Additionally, because of their interest in the property
and their desire to locate in Leon Valley the developer has indicated that as a community
partner $125,000 would be donated to Leon Valley to connect the trail system from the
Fiesta property, to the Ridge, and into the creek here adjacent to City Hall (see attached
exhibit). The developer would also take care of any drainage concerns on the property.
The buildings would not be demolished but would be enhanced to meet the
Commercial/Industrial Overlay Standards.

The Mayor, City Council and I are aware that great time, detail and excitement went into
the Revitalization Charrette for the former Fiesta Dodge, however in practical use of the
property, its commercial feasibility, discussions with the Economic Development
Department, and inquiries into the site; Enterprise and the other businesses that they
would like to bring to the area are acceptable end-users for the property.

We understand that this is not the highest and best use of the property as the charrette
would indicate, but it does generate activity and property use in this area. The property
will be dropping from the tax roll in the near future, which is a loss to the City of
approximately $30,000 per year in ad valorem taxes. Thus the zoning overlay change is
a reasonable request for a viable user that will revitalize the site, bring attention to the
area, and most importantly keep the property on the tax roll and generate sales tax. It is
also important to note that if the property is kept on the tax roll this is $30,000, plus there
is an approximate return on investment of $15,000+ for a total of $45,000+ in ad valorem
taxes annually for the City, not including potential sales tax revenues. This is an
important revitalization project for a property which has been vacant for 4 years, has
been trespassed on and is regularly vandalized with graffiti. Rather than having an
eyesore on Bandera Road this project can turn the property into a gem for the City
resulting in economic development by similar investors who look for positive
revitalization such as this.

Chairman and Commission we thank you for you careful consideration and we look
forward to receiving your recommendation concerning the overlay change for the
September 4th City Council Meeting.

Should you have any questions please feel free to contact me at 210-684-1391,
extension 219.







 

  Page 1 of 3 

300 East Sonterra Blvd., Ste. 230 
San Antonio, Texas 78258 

(210) 798-1895 
Fax (210) 798-1896 

 
MEMORANDUM 

To:  

 
 
Ms. Kristie Flores, Director of 
Community Development,  
City of Leon Valley 

 

 
From:  

 
Jim Carrillo, FAICP, ASLA 
Halff Associates Inc. 

 

 
Date:  

 
August 13, 2012  

 
Halff Project 
Number:  

27055A  

 

 
Subject:  Considerations Regarding Redevelopment of the Fiesta Dodge Site and 
Permitted Uses Allowed by the Leon Valley Sustainability Overlay 
 
 

Introduction:  The Sustainability and Commercial Overlay Districts Ordinance was 
enacted by the City of Leon Valley in 2010, and it has since been used to guide 
improvements to non-residential properties within Leon Valley, primarily along Bandera 
Road.   

A key redevelopment opportunity within the City is the site of the former Fiesta Dodge 
dealership, located along the south side of Bandera Road in the vicinity of the new 
flyover to Loop 410.  In this memorandum the site will be referred to as the Fiesta 
Dodge site.  This property has been unoccupied since the closing of the dealership in 
2008.  The site’s size and location make it a highly visible redevelopment opportunity, 
but challenges to access to the site caused by the flyover and the rolling topography of 
the site have delayed redevelopment of the site so far.  None the less, this site remains 
one of the largest and most prominent redevelopment opportunities within the entire 
City of Leon Valley. 

Under the Sustainability Overlay, automotive uses are restricted within the Overlay 
district.  Consideration has been given as to whether the development of automotive 
uses on the site might allow the Fiesta Dodge site (a former automotive dealership) to 
redevelop more quickly.  Potential automotive uses for the site include its 
redevelopment as an automobile dealership or its use as a car rental facility. This 
memorandum addresses concerns regarding redevelopment of the site and potential 
mechanisms that could be used to expand the range of development opportunities for 
the site. 

 

 



 

  Page 2 of 3 

300 East Sonterra Blvd., Ste. 230 
San Antonio, Texas 78258 

(210) 798-1895 
Fax (210) 798-1896 

This being said, there are two considerations to expand the uses for the site: 

 

Option 1:  Adjustment the boundaries of the Sustain ability Overlay and the 
Commercial Overlay districts to add the Fiesta Dodg e Site to the Commercial 
Overlay District  – while both overlay districts have similar requirements, the 
Commercial Overlay District has a wider range of permitted uses.  Its current 
boundaries are very near the Fiesta Dodge site, and it may be beneficial to adjust the 
boundaries to place the Fiesta Dodge site in the Commercial Overlay District.  Car 
rentals may have to added as an allowed use to the Commercial Overlay District 
ordinance. 

Option 2:  Use of a Development Agreement to Ensure  that the City’s Intent 
Regarding the Site is followed  – specific agreements with property owners are used 
to ensure that a proper understanding of the roles, expectations and responsibilities of 
both the governing entity and the property developer are clearly outlined.  Such an 
agreement for this site should be considered, but would still need to fall under the 
requirements of the Overlay District(s).   

You may note that Options 1 and 2 can be utilized i n conjunction with each other 
to protect the site further.   
  

Conclusion - Key considerations in the redevelopmen t of the Fiesta Dodge site    

The following items should be considered regarding the subject site: 

1. In all cases, the impact on adjacent existing 
land uses should be considered. These adjacent uses include an office tower 
and some residential.  These uses were developed after the Fiesta Dodge site 
was first utilized for automobile sales, but if the new site plan does not provide 
adequate buffering and aesthetic treatments, it may now impact those adjacent 
properties. 

2. In addition, the site continues to have 
significant long term re-development potential for Leon Valley.  Therefore, the 
City of Leon Valley should consider the impact of any short term redevelopment 
on that long term potential. Any actions undertaken by the City should ultimately 
be helpful to that long term redevelopment and not hinder it. 

3. Additional landscaping along Bandera Road 
and along the edges of the property should be included in any redevelopment 
scheme for the property.  If the existing buildings on the site continue to be used, 
they should be upgraded to meet or exceed the intent of the Overlay district(s).  If 
new buildings are included, they should also meet or exceed the requirements of 
the overlay district.   

 



 

  Page 3 of 3 

300 East Sonterra Blvd., Ste. 230 
San Antonio, Texas 78258 

(210) 798-1895 
Fax (210) 798-1896 

The City of Leon Valley may want to consider the following course of action: 

1. Consider adding the Fiesta Dodge site to the 
Commercial Overlay district; and/or 

2. Create a specific development agreement with 
the property owner that discusses long term development strategies for the 
property so that other development opportunities for the site can be maximized. 

 

End of Memorandum 
 
 
 

 
 



ORD. NO. 12-

AN ORDINANCE

AMENDING CHAPTER 14, “ZONING,” CHAPTER 14, “ZONING”
APPENDIX 2, “OVERLAY BOUNDARIES,” APPENDIX 2A,
“SUSTAINABILITY OVERLAY,” AND APPENDIX 2C,
“COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL OVERLAY,” AND PROVIDING A
PENALTY OF UP TO TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2000)

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS THAT:

1. Chapter 14, “Zoning,” Appendix 2, “Overlay Boundaries,” and
Appendix 2A, Sustainability Overlay,” and 2C, “Commercial/
Industrial Overlay,” are amended as follows:



ORD. NO. 12-

“Appendix 2 Overlay Boundaries



ORD. NO. 12-

Appendix 2A Sustainability Overlay



ORD. NO. 12-

Appendix 2C Commercial/Industrial Overlay



ORD. NO. 12-

2. Each violation of this article shall be punishable by a fine of up to two
thousand dollars ($2000), unless some other fine is specifically
prescribed for a particular violation.

3. This ordinance shall become effective on and after its passage,
approval and publication as prescribed by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of September, 2012.

__________________________
Mayor Chris Riley

ATTEST:

_____________________________
Janie Willman, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

__________________________
City Attorney Mick McKamie



City of Leon Valley
City Council

Consideration of a Map
Amendments to

Chapter 14, “Zoning”

September 4, 2012









City of Leon Valley
City Council

Consideration of a Map
Amendments to

Chapter 14, “Zoning”

September 4, 2012



 

 1 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
LEON VALLEY ZONING COMMISSION 

 
August 28, 2012 

 
The meeting of the Leon Valley Zoning Commission convened at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, August 28, 
2012, in City Council Chambers at 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas. 
  
I. Roll Call 
 
Present were Chairman Claude Guerra III, Vice-Chair Wendy Phelps, 2nd Vice-Chair Olen Yarnell, 
and Members Mike Davis, Jr., Hal Burnside, Pedro Esquivel and Carmen Sanchez and Alternate 
Members Phyllis McMillan, Nicole Monsibais, and new Alternate Member Carlos Fernandez. Also 
present was Kristie Flores, Director of Community Development, acting as recording secretary. 
 
Also present was Economic Development Director Claudia Mora. 
 
Chairman Guerra III welcomed new Alternate Member Carlos Fernandez. 
 
II. Approval of Minutes – July 24, 2012  
 
2nd Vice-Chair Olen Yarnell made a motion to approve the minutes as written.  Commissioner Pedro 
Esquivel seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously by voice vote.   
 
III. Discussion of the Master Plan Revisions for th e following Neighborhood Area –  

3N Old Mill Area and 6N Grass Valley Area   
 

Chairman Claude Guerra III opened the discussion of the Master Plan Revisions for 3N Old Mill Area 
and 6N Grass Valley Area.  Staff addressed the audience and noted that the Zoning Commission 
reviews the Master Plan every 4 years to update it with current information and trends.  Staff further 
noted that the Master Plan was a policy guide and was to be considered in board terms and not as 
law.  Staff turned the discussion of the Old Mill Area to Commission Member Phyllis McMillan.  She 
noted the following regarding Old Mill Area:  the area is in good condition and the existing 
Neighborhood Matrix lets the reader/developer know what land uses are desirable to this area; the 
primary part of this area is zoned R-1 and R-6 with some retail along Huebner and Bandera roads; the 
proposed zoning is consistent and compatible with the area and allows for a good 
community/residential development; the existing zoning and development regulations are acceptable 
for the area and the R-1 and R-6 areas are completely developed; there are  standard sidewalks and 
appropriate signage for the pedestrian and car traffic in the neighborhood; Code Enforcement of the 
area needs to continue as it is an older neighborhood; there were no obvious flood issues noted in the 
review of this neighborhood; Economic Development could benefit this area by developing empty B-2 
plots of land along Huebner Road and encouraging businesses to inhabit empty buildings that are in 
B-2;  the residential part of the Strategic plan is developed and is adequate; and there were no Capital 
Improvements noted for Old Mill.        
 
Concluding the review of Old Mill, Commissioner Hal Burnside began the discussion of the Grass 
Valley Area.  He noted the following in his presentation:  Considering the age of this area, it is in good 
condition; the Neighborhood Matrix clearly defines this area as R-1 and R-2 with the pool area at Poss 
Road and Peach Tree being zoned as B-1; the zoning in this area is consistent and compatible with 
the developed community; no other zoning districts need to be considered for this area and the 
existing development regulations implement the plan for this community;  there appear to be 



 

 2 

sidewalks throughout the area.  However as a Community Service to the area, pedestrian crossing 
signs should be installed at the existing crosswalk at Peach Tree and Poss, this crosswalk needs 
better definition (marks in the street) and improvement to make it safe and more obvious to drivers on 
Poss; the area generally looks good however, some existing fences viewed from along the streets 
need improved maintenance, overgrowth was found along the easement behind 6823 Grass Valley, 
and the alley behind the Grass Valley Shopping Center has become a dumping place for large 
discarded items and has large potholes; there are no obvious flooding areas here with the possible 
exception of the plots of residential property along Larksong that back up to Poss Road, at times park 
flooding might affect this area and other areas further down Poss; Economic Development would not 
benefit this area as it is primarily residential; the Strategic Plan, as written, is adequate for this area, 
and no Capital Improvements are suggested.   
 
2nd Vice-Chair Yarnell noted that when attending a City Council meeting he heard the concern of a 
neighbor to Council noting that there were flooding problems in the area.  He further explained that 
the concerned resident noted that water went all the way up the driveway and Public Works often had 
to assist by placing bags of sand along the property to keep it from flooding. 
 
Commissioner Hal Burnside noted that he went out to Grass Valley on a Sunday after a Saturday 
night rain and there was no flooding at that time but water was definitely rushing down the street 
heavily. 
 
Staff noted that Carol Smith of 7230 Grass Valley had called earlier in the day and was not able to 
attend the meeting but wanted the Commission to know that there is flooding at her home on Grass 
Valley as a result of the deterioration of curbs along Evers Road. 
 
Chairman Guerra III opened the public discussion portion of the public meeting.  He noted that there 
were no members of the audience to speak regarding Old Mill and the public discussion of Grass 
Valley began. 
 
Staff noted that approximately 500 mail outs were sent between Old Mill and Grass Valley.  Only three 
(3) residents were in the audience. 
 
Carolyn Gabriel, 6814 Forest Bend, addressed the Commission and noted that she does not live in 
Grass Valley, but she was in attendance to speak for the pool.  She noted that the notice sent out and 
the way it was worded gave the appearance that the pool was being sold and encouraged rezoning to 
residential. She explained that this made it difficult to promote and market the pool when they 
struggled this past year to keep it open and operating.  She further explained that it was a nice pool 
with great shade trees and fresh, clear water. 
 
Staff noted that the pool was not being sold and that there was no rezoning of the area occurring.  
Staff noted that the Master Plan was a policy guide to assist in future development of the property in 
the event it is ever sold, changes ownership or a developer attempts to rezone it if it ceases to be a 
pool.  Staff further explained that a B-2 (Retail) use or even a more intense zoning classification such 
as B-3 (Commercial) could be considered unless otherwise specified in the Master Plan.  Staff noted 
to Ms. Gabriel and the Commission that the sentence pertaining to the zoning considerations and 
potential selling of the pool could be rephrased to eliminate misconceptions. Ms. Gabriel noted that 
she appreciated the revision of the sentence and that it was clear to hear as part of the clarifying 
discussion that the meeting was simply a routine update.  
 
Alejandro Vega, 6730 Cherryleaf, addressed the Commission and asked where the existing R-2 was 
located and whether there would be more R-2 developed.  Staff indicated the location of the R-2 on 



 

 3 

the zoning map and indicated that there was no more R-2 planned for the area, especially since the 
area was built out. 
 
Mr. Vega also recommended consideration of a street light at Cherryleaf and Huebner noting that it 
would help traffic as well as assist the crossing guards by allowing them to utilize the light to safely get 
children across the street. 
 
Being no further discussion Chairman Claude Guerra III thanked those in attendance for their 
participation and ended the public meeting discussion. 
 
IV. Public Hearing to Consider an Amendment to Chap ter 14, “Zoning,” Appendix 2, 

“Overlay Boundaries,” Map and Appendix 2A, “Sustain ability Overlay” Map and 2C 
“Commercial/Industrial Overlay,” Map to Move 6300 &  6320 Bandera Road, Being Lot 5 
and NW IRR 285 feet of Lot 6, Block 1, Lincoln Merc ury Subdivision, CB 4429H and Lot 
2 and NE 25.10 feet of SE 387.74 feet of Lot 6, Blo ck 1, CB 4429H, B-3 (Commercial) 
zoned properties from the Sustainability Overlay to  the Commercial/Industrial Overlay 

 
Staff noted that under the direction of City Manger Manuel Longoria, Jr., this request was being 
forwarded to the Zoning Commission for consideration.  Staff explained that the request was simply to 
move 6300 and 6320 Bandera Road out of the Sustainability Overlay and into the 
Commercial/Industrial (CI) Overlay.  It was noted that this was a staff-initiated request as the result of 
inquiries with a developer that would like to invest approximately $7 million dollars in the development 
of this area. Staff noted that the property was zoned for commercial use and moving it into the 
Commercial/Industrial Overlay was consistent with properties already in the CI Overlay.  It was 
explained that within the CI the property would allow for more commercial uses such as automotive 
which was one element that the property was being considered for in addition to the commercial 
headquarters for Enterprise, an auto dealership, and a destination family-oriented restaurant.  
Additional considerations for the overlay change were:  the property’s commercial feasibility, its 
accessibility and proximity to the flyover, the fact that an overlay would still guide development of the 
property, a memo from Jim Carrillo of Halff Associates noting that the change was an alternative for 
the property with the notation that a development agreement could be created to further protect the 
property. 
 
The City Manager’s memorandum also noted that the property value could be maintained if the 
property was occupied and ad valorem taxes continued to be collected, the developer was interested 
in assisting with the park system connection and drainage improvements on the property, and some 
of the activities proposed onsite would generate sales tax.  The memo noted that the existing property 
could go from an eyesore that is often trespassed on and vandalized with graffiti to a revitalization 
project for the City that would attract similar investors that look for positive activities on vacant 
properties such as this. 
 
Staff addressed questions that resulted in an email from 2nd Vice-Chair Yarnell noting that: the overlay 
change request is within the authority of the City to initiate and for the Zoning Commission and City 
Council to consider, staff noted that the process that was occurring was the appropriate procedure 
(staff noted this was similar to the request to remove Reindeer Trail from the Sustainability Overlay). 
 
Another question noted that the Fiesta Dodge property had been in an executive session of Council 
and how the request had proceeded when no action resulted from executive session.  Staff noted that 
the statement was correct and no action resulted from executive session.   
 
There was also question as to whether the donation proposed for the trail system was similar to park 
land dedication or fees collected in lieu thereof as part of a development.  Staff noted that this was not 



 

 4 

park land dedication since the property was already developed.  Staff further explained that in 
conversation regarding activities throughout the City with the developer such as the grant received to 
connect El Verde to the natural area and Raymond Rimkus it was noted that there were also phases 
of the project proposed from the Fiesta Dodge property through the Ridge and Seneca West to the 
creek at El Verde and Enterprise being a large proponent of parks and trees noted the contribution 
they could make as a good faith gesture and community partner to demonstrate their interest in the 
City and the property development. 
 
2nd Vice-Chair Olen Yarnell noted that his questions were sufficiently answered via the presentation 
and responses. 
 
Economic Development Director Claudia Mora was asked if she had located the potential developer.  
She explained that the developer came to the City.  She stated that the developer was SRS, a 
company originally owned by Roger Staubach.  She expounded noting that Mr. Staubach was no 
longer primary owner of the company, but part owner along with some other partners. She expressed 
confidence in the investors because they had a personal stake in the company success.  She 
elaborated on the destination restaurant possibilities noting that at least eleven (11) different 
franchises were being contacted about development on-site such as:  Chilis, Cheddars, Olive Garden, 
Mama Margie’s, and Phil’s Ice House (Amy’s Ice Cream potentially as part of Phil’s).  
 
Being no additional discussion, Chairman Guerra III opened the public hearing at 7:38 p.m. 
 
Alejandro Vega, 6730 Cherryleaf, addressed the Commission and asked if the developer had asked 
for tax abatements. Ms. Mora responded that they did not ask for Economic Development assistance 
or tax abatements. 
 
Being no additional discussion, Chairman Guerra III closed the public hearing at 7:38 p.m. 
 
Chairman Claude Guerra III noted that initially he had reservations about the requested change but in 
retrospect and with the information prepared and presented he saw that this proposal could result in a 
much needed project for the City in this location, especially with the challenges surrounding the 
property such as drainage, accessibility and proximity to the flyover.  He further expressed that a 
vacant property is never a good property and it does not give a positive view of the City for those 
looking to develop here.  He also pointed out that a $7 million investment in the City could not be 
ignored.  In closing he noted that the memorandum from Jim Carrillo of Halff Associates regarding the 
alternatives for the property was also very insightful and had important information to impart. 
 
Commissioner Pedro Esquivel agreed with Chairman Claude Guerra III’s remarks and made a motion 
to recommend approval of moving 6300 and 6320 Bandera Road from the Sustainability Overlay to 
the Commercial/Industrial Overlay with an addendum including Jim Carrillo’s memo in the motion 
stating that the proposed change was consistent with zoning of the area and compatible with 
businesses.  2nd Vice-Chair Olen Yarnell seconded the motion. 
 
Commissioner Mike Davis Jr. noted that he was going to remain consistent with his comments 
regarding the overlays all along and vote “no” to any changes in that regard.  He noted that the 
Sustainability Overlay has a purpose for this property and he would like to see the Plan remain the 
same until it has had an opportunity to show progress for the City.  He explained that he has concerns 
that the Enterprise business will move out and with the change another automobile dealership will 
move in, thus there will never be anything different at that location. 
 
Staff took a roll call vote and the motion passed by a vote of 6-1. 
 



 

 5 

 
In Favor of the Motion     Opposed to the Motion 
Commissioner Carmen Sanchez   Commissioner Mike Davis 
Commissioner Pedro Esquivel 
Commissioner Hal Burnside 
2nd Vice-Chair Olen Yarnell 
1st Vice-Chair Wendy Phelps 
Chairman Claude Guerra III 
 
V. Nominations & Election of Zoning Commission Offi cers  
 
Chairman Claude Guerra III noted that the election of officers on the Zoning Commission occurs 
concurrently with the Mayor’s Re-Election which transpired in May 2012.  He noted that the positions 
for consideration were:  Chair, Vice-Chair and 2nd Vice-Chair. 
 
Being no new nominations, Commission Pedro Esquivel made a motion by acclamation to reappoint 
the presiding officers Claude Guerra III, as Chair, Wendy Phelps, Vice-Chair and Olen Yarnell, 2nd 
Vice-Chair Wendy Phelps by acclamation.  The motion was seconded by Mike Davis Jr., and the 
motion passed unanimously by voice vote, 7-0.  
 
VI. Executive Session in Accordance with the Texas Local Government Codes 
 
There was neither item, nor action necessary for this session. 
 
 
VII.   Adjourn 
 
Commissioner Pedro Esquivel made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Hal Burnside. 
The motion carried by voice vote and the meeting was adjourned at 7:58 p.m. 
 
 
___________________________     __________________________ 
CHAIR         STAFF 
 












	Posted Agenda for CC Mtg of Sept 04, 2012.pdf
	Gd Nbr Award Packet.pdf
	Award - Good Neigbhor Award to the Bandera Bowling Center.pdf
	1 - Copy of Free Bowling Pass.pdf

	Fred Stolz Day Proclamation.pdf
	Budget Update Packet.pdf
	MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONDATE(2).pdf
	.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	1st  Public Hrng on the Proposed 2012 Tax Rate - Packet.pdf
	mc 1st public hearing tax .pdf
	PpwrPt_2012 First Tax Public Hearing.pdf
	2012 first tax public hearing.pdf
	
	
	
	
	



	Draft CC Minutes Packet.pdf
	2 - DM - 2012 August 21 Minutes  draft.pdf

	TDPS Interlocal Packet.pdf
	MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONDATE(2).pdf
	Interlocal Agreement - TDPS.pdf

	Draft Resolutions Packet.pdf
	0 - 09-04 MC_Repeal 30 Day Plus Exemption of Hotel Occupancy Tax Pmt.pdf
	1 - Proposed Resolution.pdf
	2 - TAX CODE€€CHAPTER 156_ HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX.pdf
	3 - Resolutions Memo.pdf

	LVHS Request Packet.pdf
	1 - MC_09-04-12 LVHS Request(2).pdf
	LVHS Bank Stmt, Financial Repts, & Tax Returns.pdf

	Raising Cane Sign Variance Request Packet.pdf
	1 - M&C_7020 Bandera_Raising Cane Sept 2012.pdf
	2 - Overlays_Ord 10-049_signs regs.pdf
	3 - VarianceRequestLetter_Raising Cane.pdf
	4 - Overhead_raising cane - Rotated.pdf
	5 - Pic1_adjacent signage - Rotated.pdf
	6 - Pict2_raising cane.pdf
	7 - Pict3_raising cane.pdf
	8 - Approach 1.pdf
	9 - Approach 2.pdf
	10 - Approach 3.pdf
	11 - ND#1_raising cane - Rotated.pdf
	12 - adjac sign Bd Hgt ND2.pdf
	13 - site plan_raising can with proposed sign.pdf
	14 - Pylon 2_raising cane.pdf
	

	15 - Sign Variance_7020 Bandera_Raising Cane.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	Packet - Fiesta Dodge Property - Overlay Change.pdf
	0 - M&C_OVERLAY MAP REVISION_Sept 2012.pdf
	0.5 - signed memo_MLjr.pdf
	1  - Fiesta Dodge Property (2).pdf
	2  - Hike and Bike Trail (2).pdf
	3 - Memorandum - Halff - Fiesta Dodge Site 7-15-12x.pdf
	4 - ORD_Appendix 2_2A_2C.pdf
	5 - OVERLAY MAP_6300-6320Bandera Rd.pdf
	
	
	
	
	

	6 - DRAFT ZC min 08-28-12v3.pdf

	EWL Committee Meeting Minutes for May 1, 2012.pdf
	LVEDC signed min_072512.pdf

